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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

We are pleased to report on the financial results and operational performance of National Central Cooling
Company PISC {"Tabreed”} for the year ended 31 December 2013.

In 2013, Tabreed completed its transformation into 2 classic utility infrastructure company, one that is
underpinned by stable and recurring revenue streams, and ensuring a high resistance to market volatility,
The company delivered a strong set of financial and operational results driven by the robust performance
of its core chilled water business, which saw revenues increase by AED 34* miilion and now contributes
93% of the company’s total revenue. This represents an annual growth of 11% since 2010, and our profit
from operations has increased by an annual growth of 20% over the same period.

Operationally, we maintained our position as the world’s fargest district cooling company with 839,000 RT
delivered to key projects and landmarks across the region. Today, 75% of our gross capacity is located in
our home market of the United Arab Emirates (UAE). Regionally, our gross capacity has increased over 9%,
driven by connections in Qatar and the Aramco plant, our first plant in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

2013 Financial Highlights:

s Net profit attributable to the parent increased by 15% to AED 272.4 million

» Core chilled water revenue increased by 4% to AED 1,027.4 million

o Core chilled water profit from operations increased by 6% to AED 347.8 million
#  Net finance costs decreased by 19% to AED 143.6 million

2013 Operational Highlights:

e 66 district cooling plants in the GCC
&« 72,000 RT of customer connections added across the group
e Group connected capacity in the GCC increased by 9% to reach 839,000 RT
e Connected capacity in the UAE increased by 4% to reach 636,000 RT
e Major projects connected:
o Yas Mall - 14,000 RT
o World Trade Center Mall Abu Dhabi- 5,120 RT
Saudi Aramee - 27,000 RY
o The Pearl - Qatar — 18,819 RT

o]

Corporate Developments
With 839,000 RY delivered to clients in 2013, Tabreed’s services have led 1o a total annual energy saving of

1.2 billion kilowatt hours (kWh)., This significant reduction in erergy consumption translates into the
glimination of approximately 570,000 tons of carbon dioxide emissions.

*excludes AED 18 millian of ang- aff revernoe in Decern ber 2012
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internationally, Tabreed received two Awards at the 104th annual international District Energy Association
(IDEA) conference held in the USA, We received IDEA’s Gold Award for the 'Total Building Area Committed’
outside of North America, reflecting Tabreed's connection of a significant area of real estate to district
tooling, and we also received the Silver Award for the number of buildings connected to district cooling
outside of North America. This industry recognition underscores our position as a leading district cooling
company.

At home in the UAE, we proudly partnered with the Masdar Institute of Science and Technology on a
research and development project that aims to enhance operational performance and reduce energy
consumption in district cooling plants. The outcome of this coltaboration can potentially have wide ranging
applications and lead to significant benefits for the industry and the region as a whole.

The Year Ahead

As we have done in the past, we look to the year ahead with cautious optimism. We are proud of the
achievements we made in 2013 but remain firmly focused on continuing to grow our business and
delivering sustainable and recurring results to our stakeholders.

We believe that the region’s outlook is positive and as GCC governments continue to invest in their
respective econaries and develop their national infrastructure, there will be a simultaneous demand for
Tabreed’s services. More than at any other peint in its history, Tabreed now has the financial strength and
operational expertise to take advantage of these growth opportunities when they arise.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NATIONAL CENTRAL COOLING COMPANY PJSC

Report on the Conselidated Financiad Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial siatemments of Nattonal Central Cooling
Company PISC (the “Company™ and its subsidiaries ("the Group™), which comprise the consolidated
statwment of finsncial position as at 31 December 2013 and the consoliduied income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive mcome, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of gignificant rccounting
policies and other explanatory information,

Manczement s responsibility for the consolidated financiol statemants

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these comsolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the applicable provisions
of the articles of assouiation of the Company and the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 1984 (as
amended), and for such internal control as management determines 15 necessary to cnable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from maierial misstaterment, whether due to fraud or
Crror.

Audlitors ' responsibiling

Our responsibility s to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We condueted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfonm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whaether the consolidated finaacial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fmancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in ordec
to design audit procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
gxpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes
evaluating the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suificient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Group as of 31 December 2013 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in secordance with [nternational Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We also confirm that, i our opinion, the consolidated financial statements mclude, in all material
respects, the applicable requirements of the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 1984 (as amended) and
the articles of association of the Company; proper books of account have been kept by the Company; an
imventory was duly carried out and the contents of the report of the Board of Directors refating to these
consolidated financial statements are consistent with the books of account. We further report that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which we reguired for the purpose of our audit and, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 1984 (as
amended) or of the articles of association of the Company have occurred during the vear which would
huve had a material etfect on the business of the Company or on its financial position.

E“T Y t: A jg LA 7
Signed by

Mohammad Mobin Khan
Partner

Est & Young

Registration No, 532

23 January 2014
Abu Dhabi
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National Central Cooling Company PISC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2013
2013 2012
Notes AED 000 AED 000
Revenue 84 1,100,188 1,128,738
Operating costs 618&4 {592,127) {628,137}
GROSS PROEITY E0R, 061 500,601
Administrative and other expenses 6.2 {150,366) {144,339)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 337,695 356,262
Flnanee costs 5 {148,148} {186,849)
Finance income 4,573 10,183
Fair value adjustment on asset held far sale i3 {19,080} -
Qther income 2,224 6l
Share af results of associates 12 66,710 57587
Share of results of joint ventures 13 {219) {3,579}
PROF!IT FOR THE YEAR 264,604 234,245
Attributable to:
Qrdinary equity holders of the parent 271,351 236,351
Non-cantroliing Interests (7,747} (2,106}
264,604 234,245
Basic earnings per share attributable 1o ordinary equity
holders of the parent {AED)} 7 008 Q.08
Diluted earnings per sharg atfributable 1o ordinary equity
holders of the parent {AED) 7 .08 _0.08

The attached notes 1 to 36 form part of these consolidated financkal statements.
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National Central Coohng Company PJSC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2013
2013 2012
Note AED ‘000 AED ‘000
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 264,604 224, 24%
Other comprehensive Income
Bioard remuneration for the year 2042 # (7,500} -
Net other comprehensive expense nat te he reclassified to proficor
loss in subsequent periods {7,500} "
Net movement in fair valug of derivatives in cash flow hedges {8,164) (7.807)
Share of changes in fair value of derivatives of an assoviate in cash flow
hedges 12 6,628 464
Exchange differences arising on translation of overseas operations {63) {121}
Met ather comprehiensive expense 1o be reclassified to profit or
1033 In subsequent petiods (1,599) (7,464)
TOTAL COMPREMENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 255,508 226,781
Attributable 1o:
Chretinary equity holders of the parent 263,252 228,B87
Hon-cantralling Interests {7,747} {2,106)
255,505 226,781

The attached notes 1 to 36 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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National Central Cooling Company PISC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 Decamber 2013

2012 2012
ASSETS Mates AL ‘00 AEL 000
Non-current assets
Capttal work i progress 10 117,711 110,828
Property, plant and equipment, 11 4,778,566 4,939,095
Intangible gssoks 14 37,596 37,596
nvestments in associates h¥ 450,582 401,487
Investments in joint ventyres 13 1,666 1,427
Loan o a joint ventuee 16831 12,276 56,544
Finance lense recaivablas 17 1,618,906 1,619,400
. 1ggvaes o TA66387
Current assets
Inventarics 37,026 23,876
Accounts receivable and prepayments L} 458,524 S5E, 266
Finance lease recetvables 17 137,747 120,954
Contract work in progress 19 43,208 82,276
Cash and short term deposits 20 670,382 560,417
1,326,927 1,325,794
Aszot held far sale 34 21,055 -
1,347,982 1,375,794
TOTAL ASSETS 8,425,285 ®,452,181
EQUITY AND LIABIITIES
Equity attritrutable to equity holders of the pareny
tssued capital 21 659,063 559,063
Treasury shares 22 {2,016} {7,016}
Statutory reserve 23 130,256 103,041
Retained earnings 335,030 136209
Forelgn currency transtation reserve {2.487) {2,424}
Cumulative changes in fair value of derivatives (50.636) {48,500}
Mandatory convertible bond - equity compenent 27 2487017 2,353,128
{ther reserve 23 1,009 988 1,158,867
4,576,815 4,326,354
Mon - cantrolling interests 74,258 80,283
Total equity J— ] 391
Non-current Rabilities
Atcounts pavable and accruals 30 23,378 39,658
interest bearing loans and borrowings 25 1,857,114 1,980,526
Islamic financing arrangements 26 434,65% 505,790
Obligations under finance lease 28 21,346 26,112
Mandatory convertible bond— Hability camponent 27 455,045 545,130
Employees” end of service henefits 29 19,851 17,549
2,859,387 3,104 765
Current liabitties
Aceounts payable and accruzls 30 564,667 f0R,518
Advances from a related party 24 73,864 73,868
Interest earing loans and borrowings 25 135,872 135,381
Islamic financing arrangements 26 22,834 22,804
Mangatory convertibie bond— Hability component 77 110,155 112,799
Obbgations under finance lease 28 7,364 7,364
__owages 26088
‘Total lablfities 3,774,212 4,065,590
TEOTAL EQUITY AN iy 8,425,205 8,497 181
(T e e
Walead Al tasim H. Thahet
CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE QFFICER
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Nationat Central Cooling Company PISC

CONSQLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2013

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year

Nea-tash adiustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash Hows:

Depreciation of property, plant and egulpment

Finance incorme ralating to finance lease receivable

Share of resuils of assoclates
Share of results of joint venturas

Net movement in employees' end of sarvice banefits

Fair value adjustment
Intergst income
Finante costs

Working capital adjustments:
fnventaries
Accounts receivable and prepayments
Contract work In progress
Accourts payable and accruals

Lease rentals racelved
Board of Directors’ remuneration paid

MNet cash flows frorm operating activities

INVESTING ACTRVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investment in associates

Dividerds from associatas

Payments for capital work in progress
Repayment of loan by an associate

fnterest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANMCING ACTIITIES

interest bearing loans and borrowings received
interest bearing loans and borrowings repaid
tsizmic financing arrangement repaid

Cash coupon paid on mandatory convertible bonds
Payement for obligations under finance lease
Interest paid

Capital contribution by non-controling interests
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE 1N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 january

CASH ANE CASH EQUINYALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

Notes

11
17
12
13
29
34

oo

il
12
12

26
27

20

LL i S ‘H,H_:

o
| 1 tabreed

2013 2012
AED ‘000 AED 000
264,604 234,245
148,688 144,400
{121,720) (124,929)
{65,081) {57,012)
319 3,579
2,302 259
18,080 -
{4,573) {10,183}
148,198 186,849
{3,150) 23
99,944 230,030
9,068 {3,971)
{17,170} {318,927
125,395 110,676
(7,500) -
598,404 356,249
{3,170) {2,441}
- {18,633)
22,614 11,554
{92,267} (119,269}
- 3,662

.. 76 J 10,360
______________ {67,452} {114,773)
6,963 1,431
{139,181} (77,188)
{23,590} (31,798)
{120,588) .
{7,364} (7.364)
{106,204 {128,087)
6,146 1,507
{32,795}

S 5.t e $ 1S58
{420,887) (233,056)
109,965 48,420
560,417 511,997
670,382 560,417

The attached notes 1 to 36 form part of these consolidated financial statements,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

1. ACTITIES

Mational Central Cooling Company BISC ("Tabreed” or “the Company”) is registered in the United Arab Emirates as
& Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to the UAE Commercial Companles Law No. B of 1984 (as amended) and is
listed on the Bubal Financial Market. The Company is a subsidiary of the Mubadala Development Company PISC
{"MDCY or the "Parent Comnpany”). The principal activity of the Company 4 to supply chilled water. Activities of
subsidiarfes are described in note 9 to the consolidated financlal statements,

The Company's registered office i3 located at P O Box 32444, Dubal, United Arab Emirates,

The consolidated financial staterments were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 23 fanuary, 2014,

2.1 DASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to incude the
measurament at fair value of derivative financial instruments and asset held for sale. The consolidated financial
statements have been presented in United Arsb Emirates Dirhams {(“AED") which is the functional currency of the
parent Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand {AED '000) except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by ternational Accounting Standards Board ("1ASR") and applicable
requirements of the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 1984 {as amended).

22 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial staternents of Tabreed and its subsidiaries {the
“Group”) as at 31 December each year. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvernent with the investee and has the ability to atfect those returns through its power over
the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

« Power over the investee {i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the invester)

e Exposuce, or rights, to variable returns from its involvament with the investes, and

o  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and clrcunstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

#  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

«  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

+ The Group's vating rights and patential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of controd, Consolidation of & subsidiary beging when the Group
obtains cantrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses controf of the subsidiary. Assets, labilittes,
Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of durlng the year aré included in the consplidated
statement of mcome from the date the Group gains control wntil the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.




LY

=N

et i
fabreed

i

National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION continued

Prafit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OC1) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-contralling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustrments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies nto line with the Group's accounting policies, Alb intra-group assets and fiabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

23 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group's accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those applied to the
consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2012, oxcept for the following
amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2013 which do not have any significant impact on the consofidated
financial statements:

IFRS 10 Consolldated Financial Statements and IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. IFRS 10
reptaces the parts of previously existing 1A% 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that dealt with
consolidated financial statements and SC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 changes the
definition of controf such that an investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. To meet the definition of control In IFRS 10, all three criterta must be met, including: {a} an investor has
power over an investee; (b} the investor has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and {c) the investor has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investar's returns.

The application of this new standard had no impact on the Group.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IAS 28 \nvestment in Associates and Joint Ventures

{IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Jolnt Ventures and SIC-13 lointly-controlled Entities — Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers, IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controfled entities {ICEs) using
proportionate consolidation, Instead, JCEs that mest the definition of a joint venture under IFRS 11 must be
accounted for using the equity method.

The application of this new standard had no impact on the Group,

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

fFRS 12 sets out the requirements for disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities, The requirements in IFRS 12 are more comprehensive than the
previously existing disclosure requirements for these entities.

The apphication of IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Other Entities has resulted in additional disclosures in the
consclidated financial statements. Furthermore, the Group does not have unconsolidated structured entities
which reguire disclosure,




National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
21 December 2013

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES continued

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
[FRS 13 establishes a single saurce of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurernents, IFRS 13 does not change
when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guldance on how to measure fair value under IFRS,

IFRS 13 defines fair value as an exit price. As a result of the guidance in IFRS 13, the Group re-assessed its policies
for measuring fair values, in particular, its valuation inputs such as nop-performance sk for fair value
measurement of liabilities. (FRS 12 also requires additional disclosures.

Applicatton of IFRS 13 has not materially impacted the fair value measurements of the Group. Additional
disclosures where required, are provided in the individual notes relating to the assets and Habilities whose fair
values were determined. Fair value hierarchy is provided in Note 36.

I1AS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income — Amendments to 1AS 1

The amendments to IAS 1 introduce a grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income {OCH. ltems
that could be reclassified {or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (e.g., net gain on hedge of net
investment, exchange differences on translation of overseas aperations, net movement on cash flow hedges and
net loss or gain on available-for-sale financhal assets) now have to be presented separately from items that will
never be reclassified {e.g., actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans and reveluation of land and
huildings).

The amendment affected presentation onty and had no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

IAS 1 Clarification of the requirement for comparative information {Amendment)

These amendments clarify the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the miniraum
required comparative Information. An entity must include comparative information in the related notes to the
financial statements when It voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the minimum required
comparative period. The amendments clary that the opening statement of financial position {as at 1 January 2012
in the case of the Group), presented as a result of retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in financial
statements does nat have to be accompanied by comparative information in the refated notes,

The appitcation of this amendment had no impact on the Group.
1A% 19 Employee Benefits {Revised 2011)

IAS 19R includes a mamber of amendments to the accounting for defined benefit plans, including actuarial gains
and losses that are now recognised in other comprehensive income (OC!) and permanently excluded from profit
and loss; expected returns on plan assets that are no fonger recognised in profit or {oss, instead, there is a
requirement to recognise interest on the net defined benefit liabitity {asset) in profit or lass, calculated using the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation, and; unvested past service costs are now recognised
tn profit or loss at the earlier of when the amendment occurs or when the related restructuring or termination
costs are recognised. Other amendments include new disclosures, such as, quantitative sansitivity disclosuras,

The application of this revised standard had no impact on the Group,

10



National Central Cooling Company PISC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's consclidated financial statements reguires management 1o make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent habilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in the fulure,

Jjudgemenis

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recoegnised in the
consolidated financial statements:

IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains @ Lease

Management determines whether an arrangement is, of contains, = lease based on the substance of the
arrangement 3t inception date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset,

The Company enters into Cooling Agreements (the "Agreements”) with its customers. To the extent such
agreements are determined to contain a fease, the provisions of 1A% 17 “leases” are applled to determing whether
the Company has retalned or transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the refated assets,

Irnpetirenent of non financial assets — indicators of impaferment

Management determines at each reporting date whether there are any Indicators of bmpairment refating to the
Group's cash generating units, property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and intangible assets. A
broad range of internal and external factors is considered as part of the indicator review process. Refer to note 11
for details on judgements and estimates applied by the management.

Foir vafue of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liakilities recorded i the statement of financial position
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation technigues including the
discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values, The judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liguidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair vatue of financial instruments.

Contingencies

By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or mere future events occur or fail to ocour, The
assessment of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and estimate of the outcome
of future events, The Group receives claims from its custeomers and suppliers as part of its ongoing busingss and
records a provision hased on assessment of reliability and probability of the autflow of econemic resources.

Asset retirement obligation

The Group exercises judgement in evaluating whether an arrangement contains a legal or constructive obligation
to remove the plant and equipment and restore the land at the end of the contractual arrangement or end of
useful life of the Group’s plant and equipment constructed and installed on land leased from the respective
customer or third party. The cost estimates relating to asset retirement ebligations can vary in response to many
factors including changes to refevant legal requirements, the emergence of new techniques or experience at sites.
The expected timing of expenditure can also change. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the
provisions established which would affect future financial results,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTHMATES AND ASSUMETIONS continued

Provisions refating ta contracts

The Graup reviews all its arrangements on a regular basis 1o identify any arrangements where the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefils expected to be received under
it. The unavoldable costs under a cantract reflect the feast net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower
of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from fallure to futfil it. The Group estimates any
such provision brased on the facts and circumstances relevant to the contract.

Consolidation of investees
The Group consolidates an investee from the date the Company obtains control of the investee and ceases to
consofidate when the Campany loses the control,

The Group establishes control over an investes when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returms from its
involvement with the investee and has the shility to affect those returns through its power over the investee, The
adoption of IFRS 10 has not resulted in any change from prior years.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing 2 material adjustment to the carryving amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the consolidsted financial statements when they ocour.

Useful lives of property, plont and equipment

The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives of ity property, plant and eguipment for
calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the current usage of the assef compared to
full utilisation capabllities of the asset and physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and
useful tives annually.

Recoverable omount for osset clussified as held for sale

Management classifies a non-current asset as held for sale when the carrying amount of the asset is expected to
be recovered through a sale transactian rather than continuing wse, Non-current asset held for sale is measured at
the lower of the asset’s carrying amount and falr value less costs to seil at the reporting date. The recoverable
amount has been estimated based on an evaluation performed by an accredited external, independent valuer,
applying a valuation model, recommended by the Interrational Valuation Standards Committee,

Financial instruments

The Group classifies funding received from a rmajor shareholder as financial liability and / or equity based on the
terms of the agreements. The determination of the fair value of the financial lizbility on inception requires
management to make significant assumptions in terms of market interest rates on those dates.

Impairment of non-financiol assets

tmpairment testing requires an estimatlon of the value in use of the cash generating units. The value in use
requires the Company to estimate the amount and timing of future cash flows, terminal value of the assets, cost to
complete the construction of the assets and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of the cash flows.

The net carrying amounts of non-financizl assets affected by the above estimations are as follows:

2013 2012

AED 000 AED BOd

Capitai work in progress 117,711 110,829
Froperty, plant and equipment 4,718,566 4,939,095

intangible assets 37,596 37,596
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMBTIONS continued

impairment of accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties, finance lease receivable and loan to g joint
venture

An estimate of the collectible amount of accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties and finance lease
receivables is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probabie. For individually significant amounts,
this gstimation is perfermed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are
past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the length of time past due, based on
historical recovery rates.

At the reporting date, gross trade accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties, finance lease recelvable
and loan to a joint venture were AED 242.2 million (2012: AED 427.4 million), AED 176.3 million {2012: AED 716
million), AED 1,737 million (2012: AED 1,740 million) and AED 72.3 million {2012: AED 56.5 milllan) respectively
and impalrment foss recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
AED 0.9 milllon (2012 reversal of AED 0.2 million), AED nil {(2012: AED nil), AED nil (2012: AED nil) and AED ni
(2012: AED nit) respectively,

impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value, When inventories become old or obsolete, an
estimate is made of their net realisable value, For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on
an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or ohsolete, are assessed
collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence,
based on historical selfing prices.

At the reporting date, gross inventory was AED 37.0 million {2012: AED 33.% million). No provision has been made
for obsolete inventories duting the year ended 31 December 2003 (2012: AED nil). Any difference between the
amounts actually realised In future periods and the amounts expected to be realised will be recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Contracting revenue and expenses

When the autcome of a contract can be estimated reliahly, contract revenue and contract costs associated with
the contract are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the reporting date. An expected loss on the contract is recognised as an expense immedtatoly,

The outcome of the comtract is cansidered 1o be reliably estimated when alt the following conditions are satisfied:

al total contract revenue can be measured reltably;

b} it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the Group;

c) both the contract costs to complete the contract and the stage of contract completion at the reporting
date can be measured rekiably; and

d) ‘the contract costs attributable to the contract can be clearly identified and measured reliably 5o that

actual contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated refiably revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred.

The Group esfimates the cost to complete the projects in order to determine the cost atiributable to revenue
being recognised based on reports from third party independent consultant,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenus recoghition

Sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. For supply of chilled water,
revenue comprises of avallable capacity and variable output provided to customers and is recognised when
services are provided,

Revenue from supervision contracks services is recognised 25 supervision services are rendered. Revenue in
respect of study and design contracts services is recognised by reference to the stape of completion of the
tentract, when 1) it is probable that the economic benefits assoclated with the contract will How to the Group: 2)
the contract costs attributable 1o the contract can be reliably estimated; and 3) the Group is reasonably confident
about the collection of the amount recognised.

Contract revenue represents the total sales value of work performed during the year, including the estimated sales
value of contracts in progress assessed on a percentage of completion method, measured by reference to totat
cost incurred to date to estimated total cost of the contract. Proviston is made for any known losses and probable
contingencies,

Where the Group determines that an agreement with a customer contains a finance lease, capacity payments are
recognised as finance income using a rate of return to give corstant periodic rate of return on the investment in
each year. Finance income on finance lease receivables is included in revenue due to its operating nature.

Interest income including interest on finance lease receivable is recognised as the interest accrues using the
effective interest methad that is the rate that exactly distounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financlal instruments to the ret carrying amaount of the financial asset.

Connection fees are recognised on 3 straight line basis over the term of the respective customer contracts unless it
represents a separately identiftable service and satisfies other criferia for upfront recognition to the consolidated
Income statement,

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
clagsified as operating leases. Initiat direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. Where the Group determines
that the cooling service agreements to contain an operating lease, capacity payments are recognised as operating
lease rentals on a sysiematic basls to the extent that capacity has been made avaitable to the customers during
the year.

Rental income arising from operating leases on chifled water plants Is accounted for on a stralght-line basis over
the fease terms and included in revenue due to its operating nature,

14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Foreign currency transltation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in AED, which is the paremt Company's functional and
presentation currency. The functional currency is the currancy of the primary economic envirorsnent in which an
entity operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and iterns included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functiona! currency.

i} Transactions and balonces
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the date of transaetion.

Maonetary assets and Habilities denominated in forelgn currencies are retranslated at the functionat currency rate
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet reporting date,

All differences are taken to the consolidated income statemeant with the exception of monetary items that provide
an effective hedge of a net investment in a foreign operstion, These are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income until the disposal of the net investrment, at which time they are recognised in the
consolidated Income statement.

Non monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a forelgn currency are transiated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

i) Group companies

The assets and lizbilities of foreign aperations are translated into AED at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet reporting date and their income staterments are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income, On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated income statement,

Capital worl in progress

Capltal work in progress is recorded at cost incurred by the Group for the construction of the plants and
distribution network, Affocated costs directly attributable to the construction of the assets are capitalised. The
capital work in progress is transferred to the appropriate asset category and depreciated in accordance with the
Group's policies when construction of the asset is completed and it is available for use.

Borrawing costs

Borrowing «osts that are directly attributable to the acquisttion or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised
(net of interest income on temporary investment of borrowings) a3 part of the cost of the asset until the asset is
commissioned for use. Borrowing costs in respect of completed and suspended projects or not attributable 1o
gualifying assets are expensed in the period in which they are incurrad,

For partially operational plants and distribution assets, the Company ceases capitalising borrowing costs when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.

13



! m.m-.,«' o

tabmed

Nattonal Central Coc::lmg Company PISC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY DF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment when that cost iz incurred, if the recognition
criteria are met, Likewise, when a major inspection is perfarmed, its cost is recognised In the carrying amount of
the property plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in consclidated income statement as incurred.  land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful tives of the assets as follows:

Plant and related integrated assets over 30 years
Buildings over 50 years
Distribution assets over 50 years
Furniture and fixtures over 3 to 4 years
Offtce squipment and instruments over 3 to 4 years
Motor vehicles over 4 €0 5 years

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation sre reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each financial year end.

The Group performs regular major overhauls of its district cooling plants. When each major overhaul is performed,
its cost is recognised In the carrying amount of the ltem of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. The cost recognised is depreciated gver the period till the next planned major
overhaul.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (caleuiated as the
difference between the net dispesal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in consolidated
incame statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

investments in associates and joint ventures

Ar assaclate 15 an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies,

A Joint venture is & type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of controf of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consemnt of the
parties sharlng control,

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint controt are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment in an asseciate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost, The carrying amount
of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint
vergure since the acquisition date, Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment. The statement of
income reflocts the Group’s share of the resulis of operations of the associates and joint ventures. Any change in
other comprehensive income of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Investments in associates and joint ventures continued

fn addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate ot joint venture, the
Group recognises Hs share of any changes, whes applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture,

The aggregaie of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the
ronsolidated statement of income outside operating profit. The financial statements of the associate or joint
venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group, When necessary, adjustments are made to bring
the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whather it is necessary to recognise an impairment
toss on its investment in its associate or joint venture, At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there
is objective evidence that the investment In the assaciate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or
joint venture and its carrying vatue, then recognises the foss in the consolidated statement of income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair valve. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or jolnt venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in consolidated statement of income,

Intangible assets

ntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is s fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following inltial recognitlon,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accurmulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses,
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
expenditure is reflected in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful econamic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intanglble asset may be hmpaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation peried or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amartised, but are tested for impairment annuglly, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level, The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually 1o determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be suppartable. If not, the change in usefid life from indefinite to finite is
rade on a prospective hasis,

Gains o losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposat proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSQUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 20013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Treasury shares

Chwn equity instruments which are reacquired {treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from aguity,
No gain or loss is recognised in the comselidated Income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancoliation of
the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in other capital reserves.

tmipairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there s an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication axists, or when annusl impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estiimates the asset's
recaverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, uniess
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
irnpaired and is written down 1o its recoverable armount.

I assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair viue less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be ldentified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impalrment celculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group's CGs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations cover a period to the end of useful life of the plants.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at esch reporting date as to whether there Is any indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no lopger exist or may have decreased. if such indication exists,
the Group estimates the assets’ or cash-generating units’ recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have heen determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment foss been recoghised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised In the consolidated income statement.

Goodwt! acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Company’s tnterest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabllities and
contingent llabilties. Following initial recognition, goodwill 15 meastired at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Goodwllt is tested for impairment, annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impalred.

Impairment ¢ detarmined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which
the goodwill is alfocated. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is less than thelr carrying
amount an impairment foss is recognised. Impairment losses refating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods. The Company performs its annual impairiment test of goodwill as at 31 December.

18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Investment and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair valve through profit ar loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity Investments, available-for-sale finencial assets, or as detivatives designated as
hedglng Instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the scquisition of the financial asset.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evatuates this designation at each financial year end,

Trade and settlement date accounting

All reguiar way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which ts the date that the
Group commits 1o purchase the asset, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financlal assets
that require debvery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or conventlon in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in four catepories:

» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; The Group did not have any financial assets at fair
vatue through profit and loss during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

e« |oans and receivables: This category is the most relevant to the Group, Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not guoted in an active market,
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (IR} method, less impairment. Amortised cost 1s caleulated by taking into account
any discount or pretaium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation relating to finance lease receivable is included under revenue. The losses arising from
impalrment are recognised in the consolidated statement of income in finance costs for loans and in cost
of sales or other operating expenses for receivables.

&«  Held-to-maturity investments; The Group did not have any held-to-maturity investments during the yvears
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012

o Available-for-sale (AFS) investments; The Group did not have any available-for-sale investments during
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Perecognition of financial assets
A fingncial asset {or, where applicable a part of & financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets} is
derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

® the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material defay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement: and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or {h) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asseat.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
investment and other financial assets continued
Derecognition ¢f financial assets continued

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from art asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, ant has nefther transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred cantrol of the asset, a new asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in
the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises a liability. The transferred asset and associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and abligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, 1§ measured at the lower of
the original carrying amaunt af the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
reguired to repay.

impairment and non-collectability of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financlal asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, thare is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has oceurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows af the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be retiably estimated,

Evidence of impeirment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinguency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankrupity or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is 2 measurable
decrease In the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial ossets carried ot amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised ¢ost the Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that ave individually significant, or collectively for financlal assets
that are not individuaily significant. if the Group determines that no abjective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financlal asset, whether significant or not, it inchudes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that areg individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not induded in a
coltective assessment of impatrment.

i there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has incurred, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future expected credit (osses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimalted future cash
flows is discounted at the financis sssets original effective interest rate. if a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asget Is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amaount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, interest income continues to be acerued on the reduced
carrying amount and is acerued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows far the purpose of
measuring the impairment foss.

20
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NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
impairment and non-collectabitity of financial assets cantinued
Financiol assets corried ot amorifsed cost continued

The interest Income Is recorded as part of finance income and revenue in the consolidated income statement for
{oan and recetvables and finance lease receivables respectively. Loans together with the associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impalrment loss increases or
decreases because of an event ocecurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If & write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to finance costs in the income statement.

Inventories
tnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are those expenses incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and conditian, as follows:

« Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale - purchase cost an the basis of weighted average cost.

s Work in prograss - costs of direct materials and labour plus attributable
overheads based on a normal level of activity,

e« Finished goods - costs of direct materials and labour plus attributable

overheads based on a normal fevel of activity.

Net reslisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred on
completion and disposal.

Contract work in progress
Contract work th progress represents cost plus attributable profit less provision for foreseeahle tosses and progress
payrnents received and recefvable,

Cash and cash equivalents

Far the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand,
bank balances, and short-term deposits with an orlginal maturity of three months or less, net of outstanding bank
overdralts,

Assets classified as held for sate

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell if their carrying amount s recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through its
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met onty when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal
group is avallable for immediate sale in its present conditton. Management must be committed to the sate, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of chssification.

Financial Habilities

Initiof recognition angd meosurgment

Financial ftabllities within the scope of 1A% 39 are classified as financist liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
{oans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as bedping instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial Babllities at initial recognition.

Al financlal Bahilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of mandatory convertible bonds, term
loans and istamic linancing arrangements, directly attributable transaction costs,

The Growp's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafts, mandatory convertible bonds,
term loans and tslamic financing arrangements, and derivative financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOL!DATED FINANCIAL STATENI ENTS
31 Decemhber 2013

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Financial linbilities continued

Subsequent megsurement
The measurement of financlal liabilities depends on their classification and is described below:

Accounts pavable and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for armounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the

suppligr or not.

Interest bearing loans & borrowings and Islamic financing arrangements
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings and istamic financing arrangements are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectiva interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the Habillties are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amaortisation process, Amortised cost 15 calculated by taking into account any discount of premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the £IR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance casts in the
consolidated statement of profit or foss,

Mandatory convertible bond
Mandatory convertible bond is separated into liability and egulty components based on the terms of the bond.

On issuance of the mandatory convertible bond, the fair value of the liability compaonent is determined by
discounting the future cash flows pertaining to the coupon payments Using an estimated market interest rate for
an equivalent non-convertible bond. Fair value of derivative liability, arising from a fixed range of variability in the
numhber of shares to be issued to the bond holders is initially recognised at its fair value and subsequently
remeasured at each reporting date with the changes in fair value taken to the consolidated income statement,

The balance of the proceeds is allocated to the equity conversion portion and recognised under # separate heading
under sharehotders’ equity. On conversion at maturity, the par value of the ordinary shares issued is recognised
under issued capital and any surplus recognised under share premium or retained earnings.

Transaction costs are allocated between liability and equity components of the mandatory convertible bond based
on alfocation of initial proceeds from the bond between the liability and equity components.

Derecognition

A financiat Hiability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new Hability. The difference in the respective carrying
amouis is recognised in the consolidated incorme statement.

When equity tnstruments are issued to extinguish all or part of a financial liability (referred to as debt to equity
swaps), the equity instruments are recognised inittally at the fair value of the equity instruments issued, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured. The difference between the fair value of the equity instruments issued
and the carrying amount of the extinguished financial liability is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
in the case of debt to equity swaps with a direct or indirect shareholders, the Company records the gquity
instruments issted at the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished so that no profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Offsetting of financlal instruments

Financial assets and financial fiahilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position when there is 5 legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Group
intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settie the {iability simultaneously.

Provisions
Provisions are recogrised when the Group has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past event and
the cost to setile the obligation is hoth probable and able to be reliably measured.

feases

the determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specifie
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right {6 use the asset,

Group as lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum fease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and
reduction of the lease liabllity so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are reflected in the consolidated income statement.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term, if there is na reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement op a straight line
basis over the lease term.

Group as lessor — Finance leases

Leases where the Group transfers substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset through s
contractual arrangements fo the customer are considered as a finance {ease. The amounts due from the lessee are
recorded in the statement of financial position as financial assets (finance lease receivables) and are carried at the
amount of the net investment in the lease after making provision for impairment,

Group as lessor — Operating leases
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially alt of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases.

Employees’ end of service banefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its expatriate employees, The entitiement to these benefits is based
upon the employess’ final satary and length of service, subject to the completion of a2 minimum service period.
The expected costs of thase benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

With respect to its national employees, the Group makes contributions to the relevant UAE Government pensian
scheme calculated as a percentage of the emplayess’ salaries. The abligations under these schemes are limited ta
these contributions, which are expensed when due,

FAe]
Tl



el o _;.AMJ

R
National Central Cooling Company PISC [.[_m_lf tabreed

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Share-based payment transactions

Qualifying employees of the Company receive part of their remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, The employees are granted notional units of Company’s ordinary shares which are payable in cash
{'cash-settled transactions’). The cost of the cash settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at the grant
date based on the unit value determined by management of the Company or minimum guaranteed value,
whichever is higher. The cost of cash settled transactions is expensed to the consolidated income statement or
capital work tn progress, as applicable, In the year of grant with recognition of a corresponding liahility. The liability
Is remeasured at each reporting date up to and including the settlement date with changes in fair value, subject to
minimum guaranteed value, recognised in the consolidated income statement or capital worlc in propress, as
applicable.

Derivative financial instruments and hadging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge risks assoclated with interest
rate. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
cantract i$ entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is posltive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives during the year that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to consolidated Incomea statement.,

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

» cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flaws that is either attributable to a2
particutar risk associated with a recognised asset or Habillty or @ firm commitment; or

“ fair vatue hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of an unrecognised firm
commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge reiationship to
which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged itern or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item’s cash flows or fair values, as applicable, attributable to the hedged risk.
Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows or fair values, as
applicable, and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

{ash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in the staterpent of
comprahensive income under the heading of “changes in fair value of derivatives”, while any ineffective portion is
recopnised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are transferred to the ronsolidated income
statement when the hedged transaction affects the consolidated income statermnent, such as when the hedged
interest expense is recognised or when a forecast sale poeurs.

On restructuring of the hedged item and revocation of hedging relationshig, for an effective cash flow hedge, falr
value of the hedging instrument as of the date of restructuring is recopnised to income statement aver the shorter
of remaining life of the orlginat hedged item or hedging instrurment,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Derivative finandial instruments and hedging continued
Cosh flow hedges continued

Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financlal asset or non-financlal liability, the cumulative amounts
recognised in the statement of changes in equity are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non financial
asset or liability,

if the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover {as part of
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as & hedge is revoked, ar when the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cunmulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met

Foir value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recagnised in the consolidated income statement. When an
unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair
value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or fability with a
corresponding gain or loss recognised in the consolidated income statement. The changes in the fair value of the
hedeing instrument are also recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Financial instrumaents
Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial lHabilities.

Financlal assets comprise [oan to & joint vernture, trade and other receivables, finance lease recetvables, cash and
short term depasits. Financial liabilities comprise payables, loans, Hability component of mandatery convertible
bond and finrance lease liabilittes.

Falr value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, and non-financial assets such as asset held for
sale, at fair value at each balence sheet date. Also, fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost
are disclosed in Note 36,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either:

. In the principal marlket for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of 8 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sutficient data are
available to measure falr value, maxirdsing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobsarvable inputs,

23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Fair value measurement continued
All assets and Habitities for which fair value is measured or discdosed in the financlal statements are categorized

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair
value measuremaent as & whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Habilitles

. Level @ — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that s significant Lo the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 — Vatuation techniques for which the lowest level jnput that i3 significant to the fair value

measurement is unohservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether trapsfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined ctasses of assets and fiabilities on the hasis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above. An analysis of falr values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are
provided in note 36.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and far non-
recurring measuremant, such as asset held for sale. External valuers are involved for vatuation of significant assets,
such as land. Selection criteria for valuers include markel knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The management decides, after discussions with the Group’s externasl
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case,

The management, in conjunction with the Group's external valuers, alsg compares each the changes in the fair
vahee of each asset and lability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change Is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and rigks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and Habilities in staterment of financial position based on current/mon-current
classification. An asset as current when it is:

a Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in narmal operating cycle

® Hedd primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

" Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period
Al other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

L It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o It i5 held primarily for the purpose of trading

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, ar

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the Hability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period
The Group cassifies all ether liabitities as non-current.
Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

The Company recognises a llability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution s no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the laws and
regulation applicable in UAE, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding
amount is recognised directly in equity.

Mon-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-
measurement recognised directly in equity. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the
carrying amaunt of the liahitity and the carrying amount of the assets distributed 1s recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.

2.6 FLUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YEY EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group's
financiat statements are disclosed below.

= [FRS 9 Fipanciyl Instruments
= [FRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IFRIC 22)

Irnprovernents to IFRSs
The 1ASB Issued Improvernents to IFRSs, an omnibus of amendments to its IFRS standards. The amendments have

not been adopted as they become effective for annusl periods on or after 1 January 2014, The amendments listed
below, are considered to have 3 reasonable possible impact on the Company:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
31 Decernber 2013

26 FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ STANDARDS {SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE continued

IFRS 9 Financial (nstruments - bedpe accounting (Amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and 1AS 39)
investrernt Entities (Amendmants to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and iA5 27}

1AS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to 1A5 32

tAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Comtinuation of Hedge Accounting — Amendments to IAS
fAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financia) Assets ~ Amendmants to 1AS

- L] - L] -

The Group intends to adopt these standards, if spplicable, when they become effective. Furthermore, the Group
has assessed the impact from the adoption of the above new and amended standards on its financial position or
performance to be tnsignificant.
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3 REVENUE

supply of chiled water and operating revenue
Finence jease income (note 17)

Operating lease income

Value chain business

4 OPERATING SEGMENTS

2013 2012
AED a0 AEDR ‘oog
691,167 690,727
121,720 121,710
214,502 198,543
72,799 117,758
1,100,128 1,128,738

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services, The

two reportable operating segments are 3s follows:

The ‘Chilled water’ segment constructs, owns, assembles, installs, operates and maintaing cooling and
tonditioning systems. In addition, the segment distributes and sells chilled water for use in district

coofing technologies,

- The ‘Value chain business’ segment is involved in ancilary activitios relating to the expansion of the

Group's chilled water business (note 9).

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or lass and is measured consistently with the Group's
operating profit or toss in the consolidated financial statements, However, Group financing {finance costs and
interest income) are managed on a group basls and are not allocated to operating segrments,

P K] 01z
Chifled  Value chuin Chilfed  velue choin
water business  Elirninations Tetaf water business  Eliminations Totol
AED'BO0 AEDang AEDDQOR AEBO00 AEDDOD AED 000 AECO00 AELO00
Revenue
External revepus 1027,389 72,79% . 1,100,188 1,020,880 114,738 - 1,128,738
Inler—segment revenue 13,754 (14,7564} - - 12,682 {12682} .
Total revenue 1,027,389 86,553 (13,754) 1,100,186 1000,980 130,440 {12,682) 1,128,738
Oparating costs (549,120 {59,066) 16,109 {592,127} (535,485) (106,521} 14,877 {628,137)
Gross profit 478,219 27,487 2385 508,061 474,497 23,900 2,195 500,601
Profit from operations 347,809 11,423 (1,537 857,655 347,106 6,440 2,716 356,262
Finance costs {148,198) {1R6,84%)
Finance income 4,573 10,183
Foir value adjustment on
asset held for sale (19,080} )
Dthet Income 3,223 641
share of results of 66,710 66,710 57,587 57,587
assotiates
Ehare of results of joint
- L e 579
264, E{M 224,245
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4 QPERATING SEGMENTS continued
Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

Sepment results include an amount of depreciation and amortisation allocated o the operating segments as
follows:

2013 12
Chillted Velue chain Total Chitled  Value choin Tatal
water business water business
AED00D AED'O0OG AED'DO0 ALDTO0 AEDQO0 AELO)
Depreciation 142,896 5,792 148,688 135,438 5,062 145,40(2!
Segment assets and liabitities are as follows:
2013 2012
Chilted Value choin Linaflocated Tatel Chitled Viplue thait Unerfigeeled Teral
WAl business water Dugltais

AEDDOD AEDDOT AEL0DG AED GO AECDO0 AELYOO0 AEDOG0 AEDIOG
SeEment Assels 7,519,687 206,895 - 7,726,582 7,457,804 252,038 - 1.715,532
Astet teeld for sale 21,055 - - 21,055 . . .
Tnvastments i Astoistes 450,582 - - A505%2 Atil, 487 . . 403,487
Investments i joint vertures 1,666 N - 1,666 1,427 - - 1427
Unrloeaten) psiets . - 25,400 225,400 y R 373,335 373,335
Total assets 7,992 950 206,895 225,400 8,425,105 7860808 258,038 173,333 8,442,181
Segment lizbilities 618,440 E2,325 - GB1,76% 641,335 48,269 - 724,594
Lnadipeated linbifities - - 3,082,447 - 3,385,996 3,335,925
Tatal Liahilitios 619,440 62,325 3,002 447 3.774,212 641,025 BB 260 3,335,496 4,065,580

Unallocated assets represent bank deposits of AED 225,400 thousand (2012; AED 373,335 thousand) as these
assels are managed on a group basis.

Unallocated liabilitles represent interest bearing loans and borrowings of AED 1,992,986 thousand {2012:
AED 2,115,907 thousand), Islarmic financing arrangements of AED 507,547 thousand (2012: AED 528,684
thausand), obligations under finance tease of AED 28,710 thousand {2012: AED 33,476 thousand) and mandatory
convertible bond - liability component of AED 563,204 thousand (2012: AED 657,929 thousand).

24013 212
Chilted Ve thaitr Tatat Chilled Value chalr fotal
weter business water business
AELr 0o Aepong AED OO0 ALDamg AEQCRG AELD'GOO
Capltel 2xpundilire!
Praperty, piand and eguipmeat 2,660 514 3,170 2,301 140 2441
Caphat work in progress 49,053 . 79,053 75 105 - 75,708
Iwvestrznt i 2n agsociae . . - 14,634 - 18,635
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4 QOPERATING SEGMENTS continued

Geographic infarmation
The following tables present certain non-current assets and revenue information relating to the Group based on
geographical location of the nperating units:

Reventig Non-current assets
2013 2012 2013 2012
AED 00D AED GO0 AED 000 AED 000
United Arab Emirates 1,064,192 1,096,565 6,105,076 6,256,880
thers 35,996 32,173 a447,703 450,049
1,100,188 1,128,738 6,552,779 6,706,925

For this purpose, non-current assets comprise of capital work in progress, property, plant and eguipment, finance
lease receivables and intangible assets,

Revenue from external customers
The following table provides Information relating to the Group's major customers which contribute more than 10%
towards the Group's revenue.

2013 it g
Chitled Value chain Tuka! Chiffed Volde choin Total
water business water business
AECO00 AED'00G AED000 AED'D00 AEDOD0 AED'00D
Customar 1 289,924 . 289,028 298,108 849,227 344,530
Customer 2 261,569 - 261,569 261,717 - 261,717
Custormer 3 133,609 - 133,605 121,364 - 121,364
685,106 - 685,106 678,184 49,227 727,411
5 FINANCE COSTS
2013 2012
AED 000 AED 000
Gross intarest charge for the year 148,198 186,845
l.ess: interast capitalised during the year - -
Interest charged to consolidated income statement during the year 148,198 186,849
interest charged to consolidated income statement comprises of:
intersst on interest bearing loans and borrowings 65,505 71,832
Rental charges on Islamic financing arrangements 16,309 19,235
Accretlon expense on mandatory convertible bonds (note 27) 24,812 36,955
friterest elernent of obiigations under finance lease 2078 3,408
Amortisation of transaction costs 13,786 19,186
Other finance costs 24,810 20,229
148,198 186,849
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& PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

8.1 Operating costs
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2013 2012
AED ‘000 AED '00G
Costs of inventarles recognised as an expense 33,405 20,648
Contract costs 77 58,759
Depreciation {note 11) 144,205 136,600
Utility costs 213,751 263,608
Purchage of chilted water from a related party (note 31) 90,534 90,175
Chilier rental costs 3,362 5,554
Others BT 32,749
502,127 628,137
6.2 Administrative and other expenses
2013 2012
AED 000 AED "G00
staff costs 100,876 95,869
Beprectation (note 11) 4,483 2,800
{Reversal of) provision for doubtful debts - net (note 18) 811 {227)
Other administrative and general expenses 44,096 39,897
150,366 144,339
7 BASIC AND DXLUTED FARNINGS PER BHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted
average humber of ordinary shares that would be lssued on the conversion of mandatory convertible band (note

1.

Diltted earnings per share armounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent (after adjusting for accretion on subordinated loan facility — liability companent) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate basic earnings per share, plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into

ordinary shares (note 27).

At 31 Decermber 2012, the Subordinated Bridge Loan facility Tranche A was rolled over into Mandatory Convartible
Bond 10 and Tranche B was settled through the issue of Mandatory Convertible Bond 1A,
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7 BASIC AND DHUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ECUHTY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT continued

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

2013 2012

Profit for the year attrbutable to ordinary equity holders of the

parent for basic earnings {AED "000) 272,351 236,351
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {excluding treasury shares)

autstanding during the year {000} 657,647 657,047
Effect of mandatory convertible band {'000) o 276,240 2,312,322
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares)

adjusted for the effect of mandatory convertible bond (7000) 3,383,390 2,969,429
Basic @arnings per share [AED) 0,08 0.08

Basic earnings per share has been calculated on the basis of maximum number of shares that may be issued for
mandatoery convertible bond (note 27).

2013 2012

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders

of the parent for basic earnings {AED ‘000) 272,351 236,351
Accratinn on subordinated loan facllity- Tranche B (/000) ) {note 27) - 14,865
Profit For the yaar attributable to ordinary eguity holders

of the parent for diluted earnings (AED 000) 272,351 251,216
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares for basic earnings per share {'000) 3,383,396 2,569,429
Effect of difution for subordinated lean facility Tranche B {000} . . 36R,202
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

adivsted for the effect of dilution {"060) 3,383,396 3,334,631
Diluzed earnings per share (AED) 0.08 0.08

3 DIVIDENDS AND BOARD REMUNERATION

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held in April 2013, the Shareholders approved a cash dividend of AED
32.B million (5 fils per share} {2012: nil} to the ordinary equity holders of the Company. The cash dividend was paid an
14 May 2013.

In addition to the cash dividend, the Shareholders also approved issuance of new Mandatory Convertible Bond {MCB-
4 of AED 133.9 million In setttement of dividend of 5 {ils per share (79,426,201 shares to be fssued {note 27) ) aceruing
to the existing MCB holders 1A, 18 and 1«

The Shareholders also approved the Board of Birectors’ remuneration of AED 2.5 million {2022 nil),
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NQTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

9 SUBSHMARIES AND MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and the subsidiaries listed
in the following tabie:

Country of  Percentage of kolding  Principol activities
jncorporotion 2013 2012

Chilled woter segment

Natianal Central Copling Company Ras Al Khaimah LLC LIAE 1080 100 Seifing of chilled water
Surmit District Coollg Company UAE 100 100 Sedting of chilled water
Bahrain District Coaling Company Bahrain o0 90 Selling of chilled water
Tabreed Oiman SA0C Oman a0 &0 selling of chilled water
Tabreed LLC Oman Oman 100 100 Selting of chilled water
Trbreed Operation & Maintenance Zones

Cooling Statlans Cormpany LLC UAE 100 100 Operatien and malntenance of plants

Value chain business segment

GUf Energy Systems LLC UAE 00 100 Construction of secondary networks

Emirates Preinsulated Fipes Indystries LLC LAE 2444 &0 Manutacturing of pre-insitfated pipes

tnstatiation integrity 2000 LLC UAE 100 100 Commissioning and engineering servites

CoolTech Energy Water Treatment ELC UAE 150 100 Water treatment services and selling chilled
water refated products

fan Banham and Assoclates LIAE 70 70 Gesign and superviston consuitancy

Instaliavion Integrity 2006 WLL Qatar 71 71 Commissioning and engingering services

Sabara Coaling and Alr Conditioning LLC LIAE 51 51 Act as the commercinl representative of Sahara

Caapling Limited, an associate (note 12}
Others - Unailncated

Tabreed Holdings WL Bahrain 100 00 Act as a holding company

None of the subsidiaries have material non-controlling interests.

14 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

The movement in capital work in progress during the year is as follows:

2n3 2012

AED ‘000 AED 000

Ralance at 1 January 108,510 461,586
Additions during the year 49,053 75,705
Transfer to property, plant and equipment {note 11) {31,639) (428,781)
Transfer of capital work in progress to a joint venture {note 16} (15,732) -
110,192 108,510

Agvances to contractors 7,519 2,319
Balance at 31 December 117,711 110,829

Refer note 11 for indicators of impairment and testing of cash generating units.
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31 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Gffice
Equipment
Lewridd, phivanat Distribution Furniture gricf 4]
ot fulidings netuwiork ity ingbruments  Maror vehichey Total
AEL OO ALLIGHD AEDTOD AEDOtE AELN 000 AED'OOG
13
Cogl
AL Ity 2013 4,140,935 2,264,182 12,312 34,332 1,235 6,454,596
Additions 417 - 21 2,440 7 3,170
‘Iransfer from capital work {n progress {nate1t) 29,008 2,653 . " - 31,689
Reimbursement fromt custonter {B.415) - . . " {6,425)
Asgnt dlassiflad widir hold for sala {nota 34) (46,335} A . u ~ [ad1,135)
Dispotaly - - - - (302} jeu]
A1 25 Dissiner 2033 N % €77 SN 1SN - SO i ) B S 1
Rrepracintion:
AL Jantedry 2013 ATT.625 §56,38% 12,083 19,442 1,257 576,754
Depreciation for the year 103,313 41501 1) 2,168 0 148,688
Dizposals - . . " (102} (102}
At 3% Dacarnber 2013 580,933 93,973 12.5Bg 11,610 1,13% Bi%,340
Nat carryling amount bafore provisioe for impatemant:
At 31 Ponivbir 2003 2,543,700 ADER0AZ 449 4,362 mn 5,617,313
Frosion fior impaiema 3% § Jamary 2073 [ [ ————— [T P T—— [Tr——— [——
#ad 33 Dreoamber 2013 NP1 1. R ... A SRS SRR, - 1.
Mot chrrying wendont aftel piegvicinn far icnpaitment;
At 51 December 2015 1,060,491 1,712,504 449 4,952 10 _A,77E,566
W
Cost:
At 1 lanuary 2012 2,708,278 £,228, 448 1,678 §1,22% 1,235 5,5t O5E
Additions 1,052 - 233 1,133 " 2,441
Tragpstor fram capital werk in prograss o]0} aA97.74R 34,373 - 1,767 : 438,781
Replpelyrcacnsrit from sustormer s conttbdtar {B1,275) 115,260) - - {76,485}
Acoet clessifed under held for sale BZ,951 18,523 - - 112,874
Gispozals [?,075) - - - (7075
At 31 December 2012 4,141,485 2,264,502 LHE1 34,132 5,085 G54, 566
Depreclation:
At 1 Jonuary 2012 373,608 114,847 11,374 26,838 L1586 L8, 050
Dapreciation for the yoar 102,939 34,0492 714 2,607 &1 145 doo
Azpwt classifiad drelar boli bar 2aly 8,151 14726 . B “ 3577
DigRamaty {7.073) - - - - {7,073
At 31 Detmmbor 2012 JUNNNY 7> I . < N £ ) ST 127, s
Met vasrying emount before provixlon for impaitment:
At 41 Decembar 2612 ¥ 86,510 £,108,000 s 4,690 18 5,777,847
Pravision for impairment at 1 January 2412
ang 31 Dacornbar 2013 483,293 Ihh dak - NV
Nt canying armount after prowsion far impatrment:
At 32 Docarnber 20232 2,181,011 LT AT a2k A 630 18 4,939,095




National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

11 PROFPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

The depreciation charge for the year has been alfocated as follows:

2013 2012

AED 000 AED 000

included in operating costs (note 6.1} 144,205 136,600
intlitded in administrative and other expenses (note 6.2) 4,483 3,800
148,688 145,400

Property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of AED 853.0 million {2012: AED 889.9 million}, together
with the customer receivables associated with these plants have been pledged as security for the interest bearing
loans and borrowings and Islamic financing arrangements {notes 25 and 26).

Net book value of plant amounting to AED 39.8 million (2012: AED 45.1 million) are held under finance lease. The
leased assets are pledged as security for the related finence lease lability {note 28).

The management undertakes an annual strategic review of all its projects with the view of assessing the impact of
any internal or external factors on the recoverable amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
capital work in progress.

The Company applies the value in use methodology using cash flow projections to estimate the recoverabie
amount of Hs property, plant and eguipment and capital work in progress approved by the Company's
management and Board of Directors.

The caleutation of value in use is most sensitive in the following judgements and assumptions:

© identification of cash generating units;

° Estirnated use of the plant measured by s Equivalent Full Load Hours (EFLH) defined as annual ton-hours
aof cooling actually supplied divided by the supplying chiler's design capacity in tons;

] Amount and timing of revenue relating to capacity of the plant,

a. contracted but not connected at year end; and
b. not connected at year end;

. inflation rate (3%) used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the period of the initial agreement with the
respective custamer;

° Cost of construction relating to piant and equipment under construction based on contracts signed to date
and estimate of cost required to complete;

- Discaunt rate based on the Contpany's weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of 8.5% {(2012: 8.5%); and

. Terminal value of distribution assets and buildings.

Revenue estimates are bazed on discussions with existing and potential customers. Cash inflows are based on the
term of the existing contracts with the respective customers extended to the period of the remaining useful life of
the plant.
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12 INVESTMIENTS IN ASSOCIATES
The Company has the following investments in associates:
Cwnership

Country of incarporation 2013 2012
Industrial City Cooling Company Unitad Arab Emlrates 20% 20%
Qatar Central Cooling Company RISC Qatar A4% 245
Tabreed District Cooling Company (Saudi} Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 25% 2h%
Szhara Cooling Limited United Arab Emirates {0 40%
Conl Tech Qatar Clatar 495 49%

The Group's interest in associates is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements. Movernent in investment in associates is as follows:

2013 2012

AED 000 AED 000

At 1 January 401,487 336,926
Share of resulis for the vear 65,081 57,012
Additions during the year - 18,639
Dividends received (22,614} {11,554}
Share of changes in falr value of effective cash flow hedges 6,628 464
At 31 December 450,582 401,487

The associates are involved in the same business activity as Tabreed, except Coo! Tech Qatar which is invalved In
selling evaporative cooling equipment and related products. The reporting dates for the associates are idenfical to
Tabread.

During the year, the Company made no additional investments in any associate (2012 AED 18.6 million in Tabreed
District Cooling Company {Saudi), to contribute to its share in increase in share capital required for a specific project).

The following Hlustrates summartsed information of Tabreed's investraents in associates:

2013 2012
AED 000 AED ‘Gon
share of the associates’ statement of financial position:
Current assets 203,569 208,790
Narscurrent assets 1,016,151 949,631
Current Habllities {240,217) (209,319)
Non-current liabilities (529,351) {%47,615)
Mat assets 450,582 401,487
Share of the associates’ revenues and results:
Revenues 209,958 163,483
Results {as adjusted by profit resulting from transactions between the Company and
the associates amounting to AED 1.6 mitlon (2012; AED 0.6 million)) 66,710 57,587

Net aszets of associates include the Company’s share of negative fair value of derivatives of associates amounting to
AED 12 million (2012: AED 19 million),
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

12 INVESTMENTS N ASSOCIATES continued

o

>

B g

summarised results of 2 material associate, Qatar Central Cooling Company PISC, are presentad below:

summarised statement of Income:
Revenue
Cost of sales
Administrative and other expenses
Net finance cost
Profit for the year

Summarised statemant of financlal position:
Inventories and cash and bank balances (current)
Property, plant and equipment and other nons current assets
Trade and other receivables (current}
Trade and other payable {current)
interest-bearing foans and borrowing
Liabilities (non-currant}

Net assats

Pividends received from associate

13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Camipany has the following investments in joint ventures;

Country of incorporation

SN Lavalin Guif Contractors LLC United Arab Emirates
S&T Cool District Cooling Company LLC United Arab Emirates

I g _.v A
[ U tabreed
2013 2012
AED 000 AEL 000
315,814 273,237
{170,511) {140,646)
(21,61m) {20,749}
{14,633} {13,381)
109,060 98,461
178,980 181,430
1,292,214 1,430,634
86,232 185,964
(142,568) {165,837)
(698,682} {720,781)
{45,775} (41,238}
675,963 600,112
14,611 -
Qwnershin
2013 2012
51% 51%
S0% S0%

SNC Lavalin Gulf Contractors LLC (5LGC), a limited liability company is involved in engineering, procurement,
construction and construction management in the field of District Cooling. The Group’s interest in SLGC is

goecoitnted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements

SEY Cool District Cooling Company LLC (5&T), a limited liability company, incorporated in Ernirate of Abu Dhahi, is
invoived in the same business activity as Tabreed. The Group's interest in S&T is accounted for using the equity

method in the consofidated finandial statements

The reporting date for the joint ventures is identical to Tabreed,
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13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES continued
Mavement in investments in joint ventures is as follows:
2013 2012
AED 000 AED D00
At January 1,427 4,334
Share of results for the year {557} {3,578)
Adjustmants for intar group transactions 96 672
At 31 Decembet 1,666 1,427
Share of the joint ventures’ revenues and profits:
Revenues 26,239 17,263
Loss for the year {3193} (3,579} .
The following illustrates summarised information of Tabreed's investments in joint ventures.
2013 2012
AELD 00O AED GO0
Tabreed’s share of the assets and lisbifities of the joint ventures are as follows:
Current assets 70,019 65,526
Non-current assets 173,568 164,065
243,587 229621
Current liabilitias {36,410} (48,175}
Ngn-current labilities {133,235} (323,475}
Loan from shareholders (72,276) {56,544}
Total nat assets 1,666 1,437
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
2013 2018
AED D00 AED 000
Balance at 1 January and 31 Decernber 37,596 37,594
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15 IPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
Carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash generating units is as follows:
3 2012
AED ‘000 AED 000
lan Banham & Associaies 20,011 27,711
LAE Armed Forces 9,712
Other 1 173
Total A7,.5496

Goodwill acquired through busingss combinations has been allocated to the following main individual cash-
generating units, for impairment testing:

. fan Banham & Associates cash-generating unit refatleg to goodwill arising from acquisition of equity
interest in tan Banham & Associates; and

. UAE Armed Forces cash generating unit relating to goodwill arising from acquisition of Gulf Energy
Systems,

lan Banham & Associotes

The recoverable amount of the lan Banham & Associates unit has been determined based on a valug in use
calculation using revenue and cost cash flow projections approved by the hoard of directors covering a five.year
period ending 21 December 2018, The discount rate apphied to the cash flow projections is 25% (2012: 25%).
Revenue is earned from project supervision and study and design contracts, The revenue in the five year cash flow
model reflects management estimates of projected revenue on 3 conservative basis, Contract costs primatily
represent salaries and related benefits of technical staff such as englneers and other administrative costs. Such
costs are included in the model based on current expected market frend. The cash flow projections include an
estimate of terminal value based on inflation related growth rate of 3% (2012 3%).

UAE Armed Forces cash generating unit

The recoverable amount of the UAE Armed Forces cash generating unit is determined based on a valug in use
calculation using cash flow projections. Revenue comprises of available capacity and variable output based on a
sipned contract with customer for a perlad of 20 years. The management is confident that the current 20 year
contract with the customer will be extended for the remaining useful life of the plant. The operating costs mainky
represent cost of utilities to operate the plants in the cash generating unit and salaries and related benefits of staff
and are determined based on management's approved financial forecast. The discount rate applied to the cash
flaw projections is 8.5% (2012: 8.5 %) representing the Campany’s weighted average cost of capital.

Given the headroom in the cash flow projections, management believes no reasonable change in the revenue, cost
and discount rate assumptions would cause the carrying arnount of goodwlll to he impaired.
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i6 LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE
2013 2012
AED 000 AED GOk}
Loan to a joint venture 12,276 h6, 544

The Company has granted a loan of AED 72.3 million to S&T District Cooling Company LLC, a joint venture. The loan
Is unsecured and interest free. The amount is not expected to be repaid within twelve months from the reporting

date,

During the year, an itern of capitel work in progress was transferred to a joint venture {note 11), at arms’ length
transaction. The transfer has been recorded in the financial statements of the Group as a loan to a joint venture as

per the resolution of the Board of Directors of the joint venture,
17 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Maovement in the finance lease recelvables during the year is as follows;

2013 2007
AED 000 AED ‘000
Al 1 kanuary 1,740,368 1,726,115
Revisians to finance lease receivable on extension of lease term credited (o
consolidated statement of incoma - 3,219
Finance lease income {note 3} 121,720 121,710
Lease rentals receivad {125,395} (A0 EI6)
At 33 December 1,736,693 1,740,368
Analysed in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:
Current assels 117,187 120,959
Mon-current assets 1,618,506 1,619,409
1,736,693 1,740,368
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17 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES continued

Future minimum lease receivables under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease
recetvabies are as follows:

Fiirk) 2012
Minirm Present Mirrm Fresent
fease valug of lease value of
receivables mirirnirn receivables minimuim
fease lease
AED ‘000 AED ‘ano AED Q00 ALD 000
Within one year 122,108 117,787 125,385 120,959
After one but no more than five years 515,018 417,605 503,549 408,441
More than five years 3,153,958 1,201,301 3,297,535 1,210,968
3,803,084 1,735,693 3,026,479 1,740,368
Urearned revenve {note B (2,064,391) - (2,186,111} -
1,746,693 1,726,693 1,740,365 1,740,368
{i} Movement in unearned revenye is as follows:
2013 20012
AED o0 AED 000
At 1 January 2,186,111 2,291,626
Reiating to new and extended finance leases - 16,195
Recognised during the year {note 3) e R2LP20 o (121,710)
At 31 December 2,064,351 2,186,111

No unguaranteed residual value to the benefit of the lessor is assumed for the purpose of the above calculation.

18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

2013 2012

AED GDO AED ‘000

Trade recaivables 230,257 413,975
Arnounts due from related parties (note 31) 176,311 71,590
Advances to contractors and employees 18,898 14,950
Daposits and other receivables 21,036 21,576
Prepayments 12,082 8,135
458,524 458,266

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables with a nominal value of AED 11,9 miltion (2012: AED 15.5 million) were
impalred and fully provided for. Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables were as follows;
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS continued

2013 2012

AED ‘000 AED 000

At 1 January 15,550 23,968
Charge for the year {note 6.2} 911 3,373
Reversed during the year (note §.2) - (3,600)
Amounts wilttepoft - {d,501) (8,191)
At 31 December 11,960 15,550

As at 31 Decemnber, the ageing analysis of unimpaired trade receivables and amounts due from related parties Is as

folows:
Past due bt not impaired
Neither post s

due nor 30-60 60— 90 0 —-120 12G-363% >365
Tatol impaired < 30 doys days doys days iy doys
AEDO00 AED'O00 AED'Q00 AEDO0D AERDG0 AELF OO0 AEDDOD AED'O00
2013 406,568 10,645 35,408 15,450 11,475 9,192 94,008 70,450
2012 483,565 168,736 70,566 46,228 18,207 11,158 65,998 101,671

Unimpaired receivables are expected on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. it Is not the practice

of the Group to obtain collateral over receivables and the vast majority are therefore, unsecured.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 ~ 60 days terms. For terms and conditions

refating to refated party receivables, refer to note 31.

19 CONTRACT WORK IN PROGRESS

2013 2012

AED 000 AEL 000

Balance as at 1 lanuary 52,276 48,682
Cost plus attributable profit 79 59,227
Progress payments received and receivable {9,347) {55,633)
Balance as at 31 December 431,208 52,276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

20 CASH AND SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated staternent of cash flows include the following consolidated
staternent of financial position amounts:

2013 2012

AED ‘000 AED OO0

Bank balances and cash 444,982 1B7,082
Bank deposits 225,400 373,335
670,382 560,417

Bank deposits attract a fixed rate of interest ranging from 0.25% to 2.1% per annum (2032: 0.15% to 3.01% per
annum) and are held for tenure of less than 3 months {2012; same).

Geographical concentration of cash and short term deposits is as follows:

2013 2012
AED ‘000 AED 000
Within UAE 652,350 539,649
Outside UAE 18,023 20,768
B70,382 560,417
21 ISSUED CAPITAL

2013 2012
AED ‘000 AED 000

Authorised, issued and Tully paid up share capital
659,063,447 (2012: 659,063,447 Ordinsry shares of AED 1 each 659,063 630,003

22 TREASURY SHARES

The Company set up an employee inceptive scheme in accordance with the Board of Directors resolution dated
17 Decernber 2000, and contributed to s shareholder for the purchase of the Campany’s ordinary shares and to act
as a custedian for such shares. The Company retains the significant risks and rewards associated with those
shares.
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23 RESERVES

Statutory reserve

As required by the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 1984 (as amended) and the articles of association of the
Company, 10% of the profit for the year is transferred to the statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to
discontinue such transfers when the reserve equals 50% of the issued capital. The reserve is not available for
distribution.

Other reserve

This represents amounts transferred on repurchase of MCB 08 on 1% May 2011 through delivery of 415,683,447
shares, AED 1,145.2 million represents difference between the total of hability and equlty compenents
extinguished and shares [ssued. The reserve also includes an amount of AED 8,671 thousand created on settlement
of subordinated loan facility - Tranche B into mandatory convertible bonds in 2012,

During the year, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to transfer an amount of AED 1339 million fram the
other reserve to retained earnings (note 8 and 27),

24 ADVANCES FROM A RELATED PARTY

These represent advances received from a customer refating to funding support for the construction of property,
plant and equipment {note 31).

25 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Effective interest 2013 A012
ree % AED "GO0 AELD DO
Term lpan 1- Faciity A (note 1) EIBOR + margin 631,879 758,594
Term toan 1- Facility B {note 1) EIBOR + margin 1,187,989 1,192,481
Term foan 2 3% 6,064 7,351
Term toan 2 LIBOR + margin 154,005 157,481
Ferm foan 4 2% 5,217 -
Term loan s 3% 1,746 ‘ -
1,952 986 2,115,907
Analysed in the consolidated statement of finandial position as follows:
2013 2012
AED 000 AED 030
Current portion 125,872 135,381
Non-current portion 1,857,114 1,980,526
1,992,986 2,415,907

Nate 1 Syndicate loon facility

Term fgan 1 represents facilities obtained as cesult of 2 refinancing of the Company’s debt In 2011, in the form of
term loan facilities A and B comprising of flve individual conventional / islamic tranches, with total amount of AED
1 billion and AED 1.6 billon, respectively, Both of these carry interest / rental rates of EIBOR plus a margin,
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31 December 2013

25 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS continued

Note 1 Syndicate loan facility continued

The fadility A is repayable in 13 equal semi-annual instaliments amounting to AED 76.9 million {AED 65.1 million
representing Interest bearing loans and borrowings and AED 11.8 million towards Islamic financing arrangements)
commencing from 31 December 2012 with the last instalment due on 31 March 2019, Facility B is repayable in a
bullet payment on 31 March 2019,

A revolving facility of AED 150 million extended to the Group is to he utilised in the form of issuance of
documentary credits and drawing cash advances up 1o an amount of AED 75 million, out of which an amount of
AED 62 rmillion (2012: AED 90 million) (¢ash advances of AED nil {2012: AED nil}) has been utilised by the Company
as of 31 December 2013, The revolving facility carries interest at 0.58% to 1.75% for issuance of documentary
credits and EIBOR plus a margin on cash drawings and is repayable on 23 March 2019 with an annual clean down
of no more than AED § million of cash advances made,

interest on the syndicate loan facilities is payable in cash on 3 quarterly basis. The facilities are secured against
plants, equipiment and trade debtors (refer note 11).

Term loan 3 relating to a subsidlary borrowlng is repayable in 22 semi anmeal instalments starting 2008,

26 ISLAMIC FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
Profit charge % 2013 2012
AED ‘000 AED 000
tstamic financing arrangement 1 facility A (Note 25) EIBOR + margin 114,833 137,385
telamic financing arrangement 1 facility B {Note 25) EIROR + margin 383,114 391,285
507,547 518,684

Analysed in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows;

2013 2012

AEL P0G AED 000

Current portion 22,804 22,854
Non-current portion 484,653 505,790
507,547 528,684
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27 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BONIY (MCH)
The Group has four series of MCBs in issue,
Mandatory convertible bond MCB-1A
The Group has two MCB1A bonds in issue:
= A rnandatory convertible bond {"MCB-1A") was issued on 1 Apeil 2031 in the farm of trust certificates for
a total value of AED 635 million, maturing in March 2015; and
« A mandatory convertible bond {"MCB-1A") was issued on 31 December 2012 in the form of trust
certificates for a total value of AED 411 million, maturing in March 2019. This bond was issued as

settiement of sub-ordinated foan facility Tranche 8,

MCB-1A carries a cash coupon of 4% per annum from 1 January 2013 to maturity payable in arrears on a quarterly
basis.

The MCB-1A shall be converted upon maturity inte ordinary shares of the Company based on a fixed exchange
ratio of 1.1254, The bond is subordinated in right of payment to the claims of creditors of the Company.

Transaction costs In connection with the issuance of the MUB-1A on inception amounted to AED 20.9 million.

The Hability component of MCB-1A amounting to AED 200 million (2012: AED 244 million) net of transaction costs,
represents present value of cash coupon payable during the period from 1 fanuary 2013 till maturity, discounted at
a market rate of 4% on inception, which Is determined on the basis of a bond with similar terms and conditions,
but without the condition of mandatory conversion into ardinary shares at the redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds from MCB-1A amounting to AED 871 million (2012: AED 871 million) net of
transaction cost, have heen recognised as the equity component of MCB-1A and adjusted for the settlement in
kind of the coupon amounting to AED £8.4 million relating to the period from inception to 31 December 2012.

Maondatory convertible band MCB-18

A mandatory convertible bond ("MCB-18") was issued on § April 2011 in the form of trust certificates for a total
value of AED 1,065 million, maturing in March 2019,

MCB-1B carries a cash coupon of 4% per annum from 1 January 2003 to maturity payable in arrears on a quarterly
basis.

The MCB-18 shall be converted upon maturity into ordinary shares of the Company based on a fixed exchange
ratin of 1,1259. The bond is subordinated in right of payment to the claims of creditors of the Company.

Transaction costs in connection with the issuance of the MCEB-1B on inception amounted to AED 18.2 million.
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27 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BOND (MCB) continued
Mandatory convertible band MCEB-18 continued

The liability component of MCB-1B amounting to AED 220 million {2012 AED 257 million) net of transaction costs,
represents present value of cash coupon payable during the period from 1 January 2013 till maturity, discounted at
8 market rate of 4% at inception, which is determined on the basis of a bond with similar terms and conditions, but
without the condition of mandatory conversion into ordinary shares 3t the redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds from MCB-1B amounting to AED 923 million (2012: AED 923 million) net of
transaction cost, have been recognised as the equity component of MCR-18 and adjusted for the settlement in
kind of the coupon amounting to AED 114.7 million refating te the period from inception to 21 December 2012,

Muandatory convertible bond MCB-2C

The Group settled Tranche A of sub-ordinated loan facility on 31 December 2012 by rolling it into a mandatory
convertible bond ("MCB-1C"} issited in the form of trust certificates for a total value of AED 720 million, maturing
in March 2019,

MCB-1C carries & cash coupon of 4% per annum from 1 January 2013 to 31 March 2019, payable in arrears on a
guarterly basis and will be converted into ordinary shares of the Company hased on a fixed exchange ratio of
1.1259. The bond Is subordinated in right of payment to the claims of creditors of the Company.

The Habllity component of MCB-1C amounting to AED 134 million {2012: AED 157 million} represents present value
of cash coupon payable during the period from 1 January 2013 till maturity, discounted at a market rate of 4% at
inception, which is determined on the basis of a bond with similar terms and conditions, but without the condition
of mandatory conversion into ordinary shares at the redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds from MCEB-1C amoaunting to AED 559.9 million {2012: AED 559.9 million) have been
recognised as the equity component of MCB-1¢,

Muandatory convertible bond MCB-4

A mandatory convertible bond (*MCB-4"} was issued on 22 May 2013 in the form of trust certificates for a total
vatue of AED 133,879 millian {note 8) maturing in April 2019,

MCB-4 does not carry a coupon. The instrument is convertible any time from now until maturity in 2019 into
ordinary shares of the Company based on a fixed exchange ratio of 1.6856. The bond Is subordinated tn right of
payment to the claims of creditors of the Company. MCB-4 has therefore been recognised sy an equity instrument,
Total number of shares upon conversion will ba 79,426,201 shares at AED 1 each.

The mandastory convertible bonds MCB 1A, 1B, 1C and MCB 4 have been Issued without any pledge or security.
Reconciltation between the amounts presented in the consolidated staternent of financial position is as follows:

Mandatory convertible bond {MCB 1A)

Lighility Equity

cornponent component Total

AFD 000 AED 000 AED Q00

Balance at 1 January 2013 243,881 870,575 1,114,556
Accretion expense 9,174 - 2,174
Amortlsation of transaction costs 337 - 327
Cash coupons paid {44,583) - (44,587}
Balance at 31 December 2013 208,899 870,575 1,079,474
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27 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BOND {MCB) continued

Mandatory eonvertible bond (MCE 18)

Liability Equity

ramponent camponent Total

AED 000 AEL 000 AED 000

Balance at 1 lanuary 2013 257,041 922,612 1,179,653
Accretinn expense 8,709 " 5,708
Amartisation of transaction casts 549 - 545
Cash coupons paid (47,188) - (47,188)
Balance at 31 December 2013 220,111 922,612 1,142,723

Mandatory convertible bond (MCB 10}

Linbility Lquity

component component Total

AED ‘000 AER OO0 AED 000

Bajance at 1 January 2013 156,967 559,951 716,858
Accretion expense h.949 - 5,929
Amortisation of transaction costs 175 - 175
Cash coupons paid (28,817} - (28,817}
Balance at 31 December 2013 134,194 559,951 624,145

Mandatory convertible bond (MCB 4)

Liahility Equity
compenent component Tatal
AED 000 AED Q00 AED 000
Balance at inception and at 31 Becember 2013 {note B) - 133,879 133,879
Total balance of 4CBs at 31 December 2013 563,204 2,487, 017 3,050,221
Total batance of MCBs at 21 December 2012 657,529 2,353,138 3,011,067
Allocated to the bonds as follows:
MCR 1A {representing 589,944,012 shares at AED 1 each) 208,899 870,575 1,079,474
MCB 1B (regrasenting 1,047, 776,962 shares at AED 1 each) 220,111 922,612 1,142,725
MCB 1C (representing 639,862,450 shares at AED 1 each) 134,194 559,951 684,145
MCE 4 (represanting 79,428,201 shares at AED 1 gach) - 123,879 133,875
Total 2,757,010,534 shares @ AED 1 each 563,204 248,017 3,060,221
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31 December 2013

27 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BOND {MCB) cantinved

Liabitity component of mandatory convertible bonds is analysed In the interirm consolidated statement of financial
positicn as follows:

At 31 December At 31 Decernber

2013 2012

AED 000 AED 000

Current 114,154 114,799
Non current 453,045 545,130
563,204 657,929

28 OBLIGATIONS INDER FINANCE LEASE

During 2006, the Company entered Into a sale and lease back agreement with a third party refating to certain
plants {note 11) for an amount of AED 55.8 million. The lease carries interast at an effective rate of 9.5% per
annum and is repayable in monthly instalments over a period of 12 years.

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the minimum lease
payrments are as follows:

2013 2012
Minimum Present Minimurn Present
lease volue af legse value af
payments poyments poyments payments
AFD 000 AEL 000 AED GO0 AED TOD
Within one year 7,749 7,564 7,749 7,364
After one year but not more than five years 27,158 25,346 30,595 23,384
After five years - - 4,505 2,738
35,504 28,710 43,248 33,476
Less: amounts representing finance charges (6,794} N . (9,772)“ -
Present value of mintmum lease payments 28,710 28,710 33476 33476

The finance lease liability is classifled in the consolidated statement of financial position as fallows:

2013 2012

AED 000 AED 000

Current 7,364 7,364
Non-current ___ 2,346 .2l

28,710 33,476
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29 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The Company provides for employees’ end of service henefits in respect of its expatriate employees in accordance
with the employees’ contracts of employment. The movements in the provision recognised in the consolldated
statement of financial position are as follows:

2013 2012
AED 000 AED ‘000
Balance at 1 Janyary 17,549 17,090
Net movernent during the year 2,302 459
Balance at 31 Pecember 19,853 17,548
30 ACCOLINTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS
2013 2012
AED D00 AED Q00
Non-current liahilities
Retentions payable for non-capital expenditure - 6,280
Otherpayables 23318 e E3TE
13,378 79,658
Current fiabiities
Relating to copital expenditure:
Contractar payable and retentions 64,665 100,337
Accrued expenses and provisions 74,913 81,974
139,578 182,311
Crthers:
Accounts pavable 52,686 S1318
Due to related parties — associates (note 31) 36,3210 34,843
Accrugd expenses 151,082 147,440
Other payables L Es10

564,667 508,518

Terms and conditions of the abave financial labilities;
Accounts payable and other financial Habilities are nor-imterest bearing and are normally setiled on 60 day terms,

Retentions payabde are non interest bearing and are normally settled in accordance with the terms of the
cohtracts,

For terms and conditions refating to related parties, refer to npte 21,
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Related parties represent the Government of Abu Dhabi and related departments and Institutions {owner of the
malority shareheolder), associated companies, joint ventures, majority shareholder, directors and key management
personnel of the Company, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties.
Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company's management.

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

2018 2012
Dpcroting liearear Othar aperaripg foterest Orfrer
Rewiig Loty Expenre incame Revenus firgty g Inmame
AFOOOH AP0 AELO00 AED'BRE AEQ'DO] AFR0an AEQ0O8 ATDO0
Associgted companies 80,534 4,293 - 90,175 4,229
Majority shareholder 183 24,812 R 335 36,959
nssoclate of g majority shareholder 134,071 - - 171,848 -
Government related depiriments
and insthutlons a3 553 114,585 29,304 34,061 208,931 34,996
Balances with related parttes included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:
2023
Laan Murndatary Atcounts Accounis inberest hearing
receivable tonvertible bond Recefvable payuhles and foans and Islamic
aduances financing
arrangemeits
AED'0DG AED GO0 AEDDOD AFDOO0 AED'O00
Assnciated campanies - 70,323 32,868 -
Joint venture 72,276 7,314 . -
Majority shareholder {note 27) - 4,050,211 12 - -
Associate of a majority sharghoider . - 138,004 74,869 -
Govarnment  related  departments
and institutions - 10,443 906,698
12,276 3,050,221 176,311 110,173 406,690
2012
Loan Mandatory Accounts Accounts interest bearing
receivable vanvertible bond Receivable pavablos and loans aad Isiamic
advances firancing
arrangemenrs
AEDOO0 AELFO00 AEDO00 ARLDO0 AED000
Associated companies - - 28,105 30,707
Jaint ventore 56,544 - 5,538
Majority shareholder {note 27} - 3,001,067 - -
Assoriate of 3 majority shareholder - 44,480 73,869 -
Government related departments
att institutions 13,457 4,142 967,807
46,544 3,011,067 71,500 108,715 261,902
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are made at agreed terms and conditions approved by management and are

analysed as follows:

Loan to & joint venture
Mandatory convertible bond 1A
Mandatory convertible bond 18
Mandatory convertible bond 1C
Mandatary convertible bond 4
Accounts recalvable

Aceoints payvahle

Advance from a related party
Interest  hearlng  and  Hslamic
fingncing  arrangements  with
Government related departments
and institutions

Accounts raceivables with
Government related departments
and institutions

Accounts payables with
Government refated departments
and institutions

Terms and conditions

fnterest free, unsecured, settiement tn cash
Interest bearing, unsecured, cash coupon
Interast bearing, unsacurad, cash coupon
tnterest bearing, unsecured, cash coupon
Unsecured

Interest free, unsecurad, settled in cash
Interest freg, unsecurad, settled in cash
Interest free, unsecured, settled on net basis

Interast bearing, secured, settled in cash

Irterest freq, unsecured, settled incash

Interest free, unsacurad, seitled in cash

ot
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2013
AED 000

T376
1,079,474
1,142,723

694,145
133,879
165,868

32,868

73,869

06,690

10,443

3,442

2012
AED 000

55,544
1,114,556
1,179,653

716,858

38,123

0,707

73,864

951,902

13,467

4,142

There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, no Impairment was recorded {2012: ARED nil) relating to amounts owed by related parties.
This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and
the market in which the related party cperates,

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits

Ermployees’ end of service benefits

Number of key management personnel

53

2013 2012
AED ‘000 AED 100
18,902 21,845
639 1,645
19,541 3,454
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32 CONTINGENCIES
Bank puarantees
The bankers have issued guarantees on behalf of the Group as foliows;
2013 2012
AEDR 000 AED ‘000
Performance guarantees 119,654 127,998
Advance payment guarantees 2,030 3,131
Financial guarantees 2,586 6,589
124,270 137,718

The Company’s share of cortingencies of associates as of 31 December 2013 amounted AED 2 million (2012
AED 13 millien). The Company expects no outflow of economic resources and accordingly no provision has been
made in the consolidated financial staternents,

33 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

The authorised capital expenditure contracted for at 31 December 2013 but not provided for amounted to AED 58
mitian {2012: AER 75 million). The Company’s share of authorised future capital expenditure of associates and
joint ventures at 31 December 2013 amounted to AED 30 million (2012: AED 147 milfion).

Operating lease commitments - lessor

The Company enters into cooling service agreements with its customers for the provision of chilled water. Some of
these agreerments qualify to be classified as a lease based on IFRIC 4 and are accounted for as an operating lease
based an 1A% 17 as the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to the customer.

These nen-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between 15 and 25 years. Al leases include a clause to
enable upward revision of the rental tharge on a periodic basis according to prevailing market conditions.

Future minimum rentals recelvable under nan-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

2013 2012

AED D00 AED 000

Within one year 228,335 214,502
After ona year bul not more than five years 1,174,174 1,076,981
More than five years 2,386,086 2,297,601
3,786,199 3,589,084

Included in operating lease carmmitments is an amount of AED 1,547 million relating to a an assoclate of a majority
shareholder, a related parfy. {2012: AED 846 miltion),

34 ASSEY HELD FOR SALE

During the year, the Board of Directors resolved to sell a plot of land owned by the Group in Oman, The plot was
purchased to be used as land for construction of a district cooling plant. However, the plant was constructed on an
alternative site instead and hence the carrying amount of fand is now expected 1o be recovered through sale
rather than cantineing use, It was classified as "asset held for sale” as of 31 becember 2013,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

34 ASSET HELD FOR SALE continued
2013
AED 00D
Carrying value prior to re-measurement 40,135
Eair value less cost to sell as of 31 Decembar 2013 (21,055)
Excess of carrying value over fair value upon re-measuremnent as assef held for sale o iJ.080

Fair value adjustment of AED 12.08 million was recognised in the consolidated income statement to reduce the
carrying amount of the asset to its fair value,

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial habilities, other than derlvatives, comprise interest bearing loans and borrowings,
{slamic financing arrangements, obligations under finance lease, mandatory convertible bond - liability component,
trade payables and due to related parties. The main purpose of these financial liabitittes Is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations and construction activity. The Group has varlous financial assets such as finance lease
receivables, trade receivables, due fram related parties and cash and short-term deposits, which arise directly
from its operations.

The Group enters into derivative transactions to manage the interest rate risk arising from the Group’s sources of
finance.

It iz, and has been throughout 2013 and 2012 the Group’s policy that na trading in derivatives shall be undertaken.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below,

Market risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise the following types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, finance lease receivable,
finance lease hability and derivative finandial instriiments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 Decermber 2013 and 2012,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating
interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all
constant and on the basis of the hedge designations in place at 31 December 2013 and 2012,

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

o The statement of financial position sensitivity relates to derivatives instruments,

. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the effect of the assumead changes in respective
riarket risks. This s based on the financial assets and financial Kahilities held at 31 December 2013 and
2012 Including the effect of hedge accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POUCIES continued

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market intorest rates relstes primarily to the Group's debt
obligations and depaesits with floating interest rates.

To manage the risk relating to its variable interest borrowings, the Company enters into interest rate swaps, in
which the Company agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate
interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed upon notional principal amount. These swaps are
designated to hedge underlying debt obiigations. A 31 December 2013, after taking into account the effect of
interest rate swaps, approximately 57% of the Group’s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest (2012: 55%).

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit for one year {through the impact on short term deposits and un
hedged portion of loans and borrowings).

Effect an profit
A£D GO0
2013
+100 increase in basis points (9,683}
«100 decrease in basis points 9,683
2017
+100 incresse in basls points {8,733}
+100 decrease in basis points B,733

The impact on equity relating to dervatives designated as effective cash flow hedges could not be determined in
the absence of information from counter party banks.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The majority of transactions and balances are in either UAE Dirharms or US Dollars or currencies that are pegged to
USD. As the UAE Dirham is pegged to the US Dollar, balances In US Oollars are not considered to represent significant
foreign currency risk.
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35 FINANLIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES continued
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet iis obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for
trade receivables, amounts due from related parties and finance lease receivable} and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. it is the Group's poticy that all customers who
wish to irade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in notes 17 and 18.
The Group's three largest customers, including a related party, account for approximately 52% of outstanding
trade and related party receivable balances at 21 December 2013 (2012 3 customers - S4%). Amounts due in
respect of finance lease receivoble are from two customers (2012: two customers).

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and short term
deposits and certain derivative instruments, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure egual to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Group seeks to
tirnit its credit risk to banks by only dealing with reputable banks.

Liguidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a cash flow model. This tool considers the maturity of its
financial assets (eg, accounts receivable, finance lease receivables and other financial assets) and projected cash

outflows from operations and capital projects.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 31 December 2013 based on
undiscounted payments and current market interest rates.

Lass than 3 Jto12 it
On demand muarntfs months Years =5 yeors fotol
AED OO AGDORG AELQO0 AEDDOD AEDQG0 AELHO0G
At 31 Degember 2012
wMandatory convertible bond - 30,347 Bi,44) 482,351 30,147 633,086
interest bearing foens and borrowings - 14,843 179,857 779,148 1,315,622 2,285,070
Obligations under finance [easas - 1,937 5,812 27,755 . 5,504
Islamic finarcing arrangemants - +,066 37,633 180,944 421,982 644,625
Accounts and retention payable, due to
related parties and other financial liahHities - 134,557 0,573 - - 425,128
185,150 604,324 1,470,193 1,767,751 4,027,413
At 31 Becember 2012
Mandatory convertible bond - 30,147 40,041 4AR82,351, 150,735 753,674
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 17,508 187,444 R35,905 1,458,194 2,484 849
Cokigations under finance leases - 1,43% 4,810 30,485 4,518 43,248
istamic firancing arrangements - 5,541 41,515 197,566 4R1,664 6,286
Arcounts and retenticn payable, due to
ritited porties and other firancial abiities - 199,051 283,847 6,289 - AHG, 187
254,452 609,557 1,553,096 2,075,305 4,493,244
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBJECTIVES AND POLICIES continued

Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to achieve strong credit metrics and healthy capital
ratios in order fo suppart its business and maximise shareholder value,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to i, in light of changes in economic conditians.,
There arg no regulatory imposed requirements on the level of share capital which the Group has not met.

The Group monitors capltal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital phus net debit. The
Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, (slamic financing arrangements, mandatory
convertible hond — llability compoenent, abligations under finance lease, less cash snd shart term deposits. Capltal
includes total equity excluding non-controlling interests fess cumulative changes in fair value of derivatives.

2013 2012
AED 00D AED 000
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1,992,986 2,115,407
Islamic financing arrangements 507,547 528,684
Mandatory convertible bond and
— liahility component 563,204 657,924
Obligation under finance lease 28,718 33,476
3,002,447 3,335,956
Less: cash and cash equivatees {670,382) _ {560,417)
Netgebt 2,422,065 2,775,579
Equity 4,576,815 4,346,358
Adjustment for cumnulative changes in fair valugs of derivatives 50,036 48,500
Total capital 4,626,853 4,354,858
Capital apd net debt 7.048,91¢ 7,170,437
Gearing ratio 34% 9%
36 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

36.1 Fair values of financial instruments

The fair values of the Group's financial assets and Habilities are not matertally different from their carrying values
al the reporting date except for finance lease receivables, mandatory convertible bond and obligations under
finance lease with fixed interest rates. Set out below Is a comparison of carrying amounts and fair values of such
instrurnerts:

Carrying Amaunt Fair Vialue
2013 2012 2013 201z
AED 000 AE 000 AED 000 AED 0RO

Financial assets
Finance lease receivabley 1,734,691 1,740,368 1,957,008 2,090,014
Financial liabilities
Obligations under finance lpase 8,740 33,476 1528 472,034
Mandatory convertible bond
~ liability component 563,204 #57,929 532,354 £49,470

58



1S}

| i tabread

National Central Cooling Company PISC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2013

36 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT continued
36.2 Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and labilities 5 as
follows:

2011 - 2012
bate of A1 December 3% Deacomber
vaifiation PO E] Levei 4 Lewet 2 favel 3 3px Leveil Level 2 Lyl 2
AEDT0 AbDn ALD00 AEDDI) AEC'O00 AEDEDG AEDGOG AFROTT
Axzets measurad at fale vafue
Adxsut hald for saln Bh10/2010 71065 - 21,05%
ainrinn
" ilatBiar enersurgd ab falr
value
Interest rate sweps nN s 48,432 - AR,A37% . £4 oud - 5,954

Angars for which fer values

ore dlse o

Finance feaso receivahles nhaima 1,547 008 - - 157,008 ZR0.014 - - 2,000,044
AR e

Upkilitlos for  which fair

valuns pre disclpsed

Dbtigations  uidns  finanea 21 172013

lesse a5 - - 17,5248 42,084 - . 42,034

iangatory convertible bond A3/03

—lability comporgnt ._B32,354 - - 332354 E49.470 - - £15.470
554,882 - - 559,841 491,504 - - 523 504

Puring the reporting periods ended 331 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 falr value measurements,

The fair value of the financial assets and labilities is included at the amount at which the instrement could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sate.

The folfowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

v Asset held for sale {land) are valued based on an evaluation performed by an accredited external,
independent valuer, applying a valuation mode, recommended by the International Valuation Standards
Committee,

» The Group enters into derivative financial instrurnents with various banks and financial institutions with
investment grade credit ratings. Derivatives valued using valuation technigues with market ohservable
inputs are interest rate swaps. The mast frequently applied valuation techntgques include swap modsls,
using present vatue calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying commodity,

Hedging activities
Cash flow hedges

The Group is exposed fo variability in future interest cash flows on interest bearing loans and borrowings and
{stamic financing arrangements which bear interest at a variable rate.
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Hedging activities continued

tn order to reduce its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on the interest bearing loans and borrowings and
Islamic financing arrangements, the Corapany has entered into interest rate swaps with counter-party banks
designated as effective cash fluw hedges for notional amounts that mirrar the drawdown and repayment schedule
of the [oans. The notioral amount of the interest rate swaps was AED 2,605 mitlion as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
AED 2,085 million),

A schedule indicating the maturity profile of the derivative related assets and liabiities as at 31 December is as
follows:

Within 1
vear 1-2years 3-8 yeurs Total
AED 000 AED 000 AER 000 AED ‘GO0
2013
Cash inflows (assets) - 1,925 10,764 12,688
Cash outflows {Hiabilities) (18,529) {25,522) o {1a0d) {45,355}
Met cash outflow {18,429) {23,597} 4,360 {32,666)
20312:
Cash inflows {assets) a1 400 . Tt
Cash outflaws (Habilities) (21,581} {21,358) (5,503) (48,442)
Net cash outflow (21,270} {20,358) {5,503) {47,731)

All derlvative contracts are with counterparty banks in UAE,
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